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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 44th (Forty-Fourth) Annual General Meeting
(‘AGMTY of the members of NORTH EASTERN PUBLISHING AND
ADVERTISING CO LTD. (‘the Company’} will be held on Thursday, August
28th, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company at 5, Gorky

Terrace, 20 Floor, Kolkata- 700017 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Te receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company
for the Onancial yvear ended March 31, 2025 topether with the Eeports of the

Board of Directors and Auditors thereon,

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Chand Ratan Modi (DIN No: 00343685) who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh [DIN: 02033194) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second term of 5 consecutive years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as s Special
Resolution:

S“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 & 152 read with
Schedule [V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
the rules made thereunder, Regulation 1&(1){b} of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 {including any statutory modification(s] or recnactment(s] thereof for the
time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant
to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes ard
Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh (DIN: 02033194, [or a
second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this
AGM till the 49 AGM of the Company, in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in wrting from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
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Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, as an Independent
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation.”

. Appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries [Firm
Registration Number - S2018UP613300) as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Scctions 204 and 1793) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed thereunder,
Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s), re-enactment
thereof for time being in force) and circulars issued thereunder [rom lime (o
time, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of M/s, Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm
Registration Number - 52018UP613300) as the Secretarial Auditors for the
Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e. from financial
yvear 2025-26 to financial vear 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Diarectors and the Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee
of the Board, be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in connection therewith
or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors,

T
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£ % eatd .j-r.': ti — & fw
W —7/CHAMPA LAL PAREEK
2 ; MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 00030815
DATE: 17.05.2025

PLACE: KOLKATA




. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Rules
framed thereunder, in respect of the Special Buginess to be transacted dunng the
meeting is enclosed herewith and marked as Annexure-I. The recommendation
of the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(11)] of the
Listing Regulations is also provided in the said Statement.

. The information as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and
the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings [55-2), issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, relating to the business item No. 2 and 3 15
enclosed hetewith and marked as Annexure-I1.

. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the
AGHM is entitied to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on-his/her behalf. A proxy
need not be a member of the company. The proxy in order to be effective should
be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the registered
office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting.

In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder,
a person can act as proxy on behall of Members not exceeding hOfty (50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy ia proposed to be appointed by a
Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carryving
voling rghts, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
Member,

cCorporate members intending to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 113 of the Act, a duly certified
true copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney authorizing their
representative(s| te attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting

5. In case of joint holders attending the mecting, only such joint holder who1s higher
inn the arder of names will be entitled to vote.

. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names
appear in the register of members [/ depositories as ab closing hours of business,
of July 25, 2025,

[nvestors who became members of the Company subsecquent o the dispatch of
the Notice /| Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. August 21,
2025 are requested to send the email communication to the Company at
nepacliTimemal.com and to the RTA at nichetechplamichetechpl.com by
mentioning their Folio No. [/ DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-1D and
Password for e-voting.

. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-
up equity shate capital of the Company as ofl the cut-off date i.e, August 21,




2025. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice
for information purpose only.

. The shareholders shall have ane vole per equity share held by them as on the cut-
off date of Aupust 21, 2025, The facility of e-voting would be provided once for
every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

Members holding shares in physical form are advised to file nominations SH-13
in respect of their shareholding in the Company, if not already registered and to
submit the same to the RATA. The nomination form may be downloaded from the
Company's webaite: https:/ fnepaclin/index.htm]

.The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from August 22, 2025
to August 28, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpese of Annual General
Meeting,

12_The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, and the Register of
Contracis or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, shall be made electronically available for inspection by the
Members during the AGM by sending an email to nepacl 1 7@gmail.com,

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall also
be available for inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of
circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e., Thursday, August 28, 20345
at 5:00 p.m. Members zecking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail to
nepacll 7igmail com. mentioning their names, PAN, folio numbers / demat
account numbers and contact numbers.

13, In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and
further circulars and neotification issued in the context matter by MCA, Notice of
the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annnal Report
202425 will alsao be available on the Company's website
httpa: )/ /mepaclin/index html and in the websites of the Stock Exchanges, t.e.,
the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India.

-Any member desirous of obtaining hard copy of the said Notice along with the
Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 may send a request
to the Company at nepacl] 7i@gmail.com, through his / her registered e-mail
address, mentioning his / her name, PAN, folic numbers / demat account
rumbers and contact number.

For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company

electronically:

a] Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered [
updated their email address with the Company are requested to register [
update the same by writing to the Company with details of folio number and
attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at nopacl] T@gmail com. or to RTA
at siichetechplamichetiechpl.com




b] Members holding shares in dematenalised mode are requested to register /
update thetr emaill addresses with the relevant Depository Participant.

16, Members ate requested to:

a) intimate to the Secretarial Department | Company's Registrar and Transfer
Agent, Niche Technologies Pvt. Lid., changes, if any, pertaining to their
name, postal address with PIN, e-mail address, telephone /[ mobile
numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN) details linked with Aadhaar,
signature, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such
g5, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICE
code, IFEC code, ete. in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forma (available

SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIESD/POD-1/PACIRS 20024 0 3T
dated May 07, 2024 and SEBI Circular No, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-
1/P/CIR/2024 /81 dated June 10, 2024, in case of shares held in physical
form; and

intimate to the respective Depository Participant, changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address; telephone f
mohile numbers, Permanent Account Number ([PAN], mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank
and branch details, bank account number, MICE code, [FSC code, etc., 1n
case of shares held 10 dematenalized form.

17.In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD /MIRSD-PoD1 /P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023, the
facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the
gshares held by them, Members are requested to submit the said details to RTA in
case the shares are held in physical form and to their respective DP in case the
shares are held by them in dematerialized form.

18. Procedure for registration as speakers / seck clarification:

a) Members willing to express their views or ask guestions dunng the AGM
are required to register themselves as speakers by sending their requests,
preferably from Wednesday, August 20, 2025 (10:00 a.m. 13T} to Monday,
Aupust 25, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST), at nepacll TEemail.com from their
registered e-mail addresses, mentioning their names, folio numbera [/
demat account numbers, PAN details and mobile numbers. Only those
Members who have registered themselves as speakers will be allowed to
express their views / ask guestions dunng the AGM. The Company [ the
Chairman of the Mecting reserves the right to restnct the number of
guestions, time allotted and number of speakers to ensure smooth
conduct of the AGM.

b Any Member desirous of receiving any mnformation on the Financial
Btatements or Operations of the Company is requested to forward his [/
her queryfies) to the Company through e-mail at nepacl] 7agmail com,
mentioning his / her name, folio numbers / demat account numbers, e-
mail addresses and mobile numbers, at least seven working days prior to
the AGM, =0 that the required information can be made available during
the AGM.




19.As per Regulation 12 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule - [ to the saad
Regulations, it is mandatory for all the Companies to use bank details furnished
by the investors for distrbuting dividends, interests, redemption or repayment
amounts to them through National / Regional / Local Electronic Clearing Services
(ECS) or Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National Electronic Funds
Transfer (NEFT), Natonal Automated Clearing House (NACH) wherever ECS [
RTGS / NEFT / NACH and bank details are available. In the absence of electronic
facility, Companies are required to mandatorily print bank details of the iivestors
on ‘payable-at par' warrants, chegues or demand draft for distribution of
Dividends or other cash benefits to the investors, In addition to that, if bank
detaila of investors are not available, Companies shall mandatorily print the
address of the investor on such payment inatruments,

Therefore, Members holding shares in physical moede, il any, are requested to
update their bank details with the Company or RTA immediately. Members
holding shares in demat mode are requested to record the ECS mandate with their
DPs concerned.

20.8EBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RETAMB/P/CIR;/2022/8
dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in
dematerialized form only while processing service reguests viz. issue of duplicate
sccurities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal [
exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division [ splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/ folios; transmission
and transposition.

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a
duly filled and signed Form ISR-4, the format of which is available on the
Company’s website at https:/ fmepaclin/investors-info.html and on the ETA's
website at https:/ /nichetechpl.com /. It may be noted that any service request
can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

In vicw of this, members holding shares in physical form, if any, are requested to
consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact
the Company or ETA in this regard.

.To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their e-madl

addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Notices and Circulars etc. from the
Company electronically.

22.Members are requesated to quote the ledger folio / DP ID in all communication
with the Company.

23_A Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the AGM of the Company
15 giver: at the end of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings.




24 Voting through electronic means:

#) As per the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and
amendments thereto, read with the MCA Circulars, the Secretarial Standard on
Genernl Meetings (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to facihitate its
Members to transact business of the AGM of the Company by voting through electronic
means. For this, the Company has engaged the services of CDSL having office at A
Wing, 34/35 Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel [East), Mumbai - M3, 1o provide remote e-voting services and e-vobhing
facility during the AGM, who are holding the shares as on the out-off date,

The remote e-voting period commences at 9500 a.m, IST oo Monday, Aupguat 25, 2025
and ends at 500 pom, [3T on Wednesday, August 27, 2025, During this period, the
Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical or dematerialized mode,
as on the cut-off date i.e., Thuraday, August 21, 2025 mayv cpst their vote by remote
p-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently.

The facility for voting through electronie means shall be made available during the
AGM and the Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote &-
vollng shall be able to exercigse their fght during the AGM through electronic vating
system. However, Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prier to the
AGHM may aleo attend the AGM bBut shall riot be entitled to cast their vote again.

The instructions to cast votes through remote e-voting and through e-voling avastem
during the AGM iz enclosed berewith and marked as Annesore-III and the same shall
form part of this Motice,

n order {9 scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and ransparent manner, Mz, Priva
Mankani [ACS - 34744, CP No, 17947) of Ms. Mankani & Associates, Company
Secretaries, Kolkata, has been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the
Serutinizer

. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of veting at the AGM, unblock the
votes cast through electronic voting system provided during the AGM and remole e-voting
in the presence of at least two witnesaes, not in the employment of the Company and
make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, not later than 3 (Thres) days of conclusion of the AGM or within 2 [Twa) working days
of conclusion of the AGM, whichever is earlier. The Scrutinizer thereafter shall submit the
sald Report to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall
countersign the same and declare within the stipulated time, the results of the voting
forthwith. The resclutionis] shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, sulmect
to receipt of requisite number of votes.

. The results declared along with the Scrutmiser's Report shall be placed on the website of
the Company i.e., https: )/ nepacl.in/index. html and on the website of CDSL immediately
after the results are declared by the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing,
The same shall be communicated by the Company {o the stock exchange.




Annexurec-I

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

Mr. Mohit Parakh, Indepetident Director had been appointed by the Members at
the 39% Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2020 for a term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years till the conclusion of the 44™ AGM of the Company. Based on
rich experience, professional skill, knowledge, continucd valuable guidance to the
management and the contributions made by Mr. Parakh during his association
with the Company and also on the basis of his performance evaluation, the Board
of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committes, considered it desirable that it shall be in the interest
of the Company (o continue 1o avail the services of Mr. Parakh, as an Independent
Director of the Company,

Further, in the opinion of the Board, Mr, Parakh fulfils the conditions specified in
the Act read with Schedule IV to the Act and Rules made thercunder and also
under the Listing Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent Director of
the Company. Mr. Mohit Parakh is independent of the Management of the
Company. It is therefore proposed to re-appoint him as an Independent Director
of the Company, to hold office for a second term of 5 (Five] conseoutive years,
commencing from the conclusion of this AGM till the 49t AGM of the Company,
with a peniod of office not hiable to retire by rotation. The details of Mr. Parakh are
provided in the Annexmre-II to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of the Listing
Repulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings. Mr. Parakh is cligible
and is not disqualified from being re-appointed as Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has consented to continue as an Independent Director of the
Company. The Company has also received a declaration that he meets with the
criteriz of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations.

Name of the Companies in which Mr, Mohit Parakh holds directorship other than
the Company are:

Name of the Company Designation

Visisth Chay Vvapar Limited Independent Director
Purbanchal Prestressed Lid

KEamini Finance And Investment Comparny
Lted

Manorath Suppliers Private Limited

| Seaside Agencies Private Limited

Sadabahar Propertics Private Limited
Anumaodan Projects Pvt Lidd

Veenapanm Tieup Pet Lid
| Evernew Traders Private Limited
| Heritapge Commoadeal Private Limited




11. Rallet Dealcom Private Limited

1:" Lance Barier Private Limited

13. H}fqgn_u:'i::rﬂ:;-ﬂ Barter Private Limited
14. Sapgun Commodities Private Limited

The Company has purauant to Section 160 of the Act, received notice, in writing,
from a Member proposing his candidature [or re-appointment as an Independent
Director.

All relevant documents concerning re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh as an
Independent Director shall be open for inspection without any fee by the Members
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e., Thursday,
August 28, 2025,

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives except Mr. Mohit Parakh are concerned or interested [(financially or
otherwise), in the proposed resplution to be passed as a Special Resolution. The
Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out in Item No, 3 of the Notice,
for approval of the Members of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Manaperial Personnel) Bules, 2014, {("the Act™) and Regulation
244 of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requircments) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations™), M/s. Mankani & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries (Firm Registration Number — S2018UPA13300) has served as
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for previous financial years.

Eegulation 244 of the Listing Regulations, inter alia, provides that with effect from
lat April 2025, the Company is required to appoint a Practicing Company
Secretary for not more than one term of five consecutive years or a firm of
Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors [or not moreé than two
terms of five consecutive years, with the approval of the members at its Annual
General Meeting (*AGM™) and such Secretarial Auditors(s] must be a peer reviewed
company secretary and should not have incurred any of the disqualifications as
specified under the Listing Repgulations. Further, as per the said Regulation, any
assoclation of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor(s] of the
Company before 31st March 2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of
calculating the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor(s].

M/s. Mankani & Associates is a reputed Practicing Company Secretary firm
established in 2018 by Ms. Priva Mankani, an Associate Member of the Institute
of Company Secretarics of India (*ICSI%, having a team of experienced and
gualified company secretaries. Owver the years, they have buill a diverse client
base, serving corporates across the country. Its clienlele spans companics Across
various business sectors and they offer a wide ranpge of services, including
secretarial audits, corporate governance consulting, certifications, and regulatory
advisory.,
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Taking into account the abowve reguirements, along with an evaluation of
proposals received by the Company and the consideration of factors such as
technical skills, independence, industry experience, expertise, audit parthers,
audit team, gquality of audit practices, and past association with the Company,
the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee, has
approved the appointment of M/s. Mankani 8 Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries [Firm Registration Number - S2018UP613300) as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office from the
conchision of this AGM till the conclusion of 49 AGM of the Company to be held
in the Year 2030, covering the period from the financial year ending on 31st March
2026 till financial year ending 31st March 2030, subject to the approval of the
members of the Company.

The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committes snd M/s.
Mankani & Associates, fixed the remuneration payable for the financial vear
2025-26 at ¥ 7,500/- (Rupees seven thousand five hundred only), plus any out-
ol-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the aundit and other
applicable taxes.

The Company has received written consent from M /8. Mankani & Associates
confirming their eligibility and willingness to be appointed as the Secretarisl
Auditors of the Company. They have also confirmed that they meet the
requircments to be appointed as Scerctarial Auditors in accordance with the
provisioms of the Act and Listing Repulations, and they hold a valid certificate
issucd by the Peer Review Board of [CSl and that they have not incurred any of
the disqualifications as specified by the SEBL The appointment, if made, complies
with the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The Board of
Dhrectors in consultation with the Audit Committee and M/s. Mankani 5%
Agsociates, may alter or vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including
remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwize, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice of the 44th AGM.
Accordingly, the Board of Directora recommends aforesaid appointment to the
members for their approval by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out at [tem
Moo 4 of the accompanying Notice of the 44th AGM.

By arder of the Board of Directors,

Date: 17.05.2025 \ %\ /o Champa Lal Pareek
A Managing Dircctor
DIN: 00030815

Place: Kolkata




INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING AGM

SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings|

Particulars

Name of the Director

| Date of birth
| Age

Ttem No.2

Item No.3

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi
[DIN: D03436835)

Mr. Mohit Parakh

(DIN: 02033194)

July 11, 1959

April 18, 1982

66

Mationality

[ndian

41

| Indian

Craalifications

Profile,
e
specific
areas

EXpETIEnCE I
expertise  in |
functional |

| renl estate sector for more than

Bachelor's degree In Commerce |

from  the  University of

Rajasthan.

Bachelor's degree in Commerce
fram the University of Calcutta

He has been associated with the
Company aince 1999, and has
been a prominent fipure in the

four
leading
projects,

decades,
VAMOUS

auccessfully
high-profile

He is at the helm of overall
strategic decision-making of the
Company ard provides
leadership to all operations.

Mhate isf firat
| appointment oo the

Board

Shareholding in the
Company  (including
sharcholding &8 &
beneficial cwner|

November 30, 2006

12 years of with extensive expertise
in both corporate leadership and
entreprensurial ventures.

As a propoetor of a successiul real
edtate frm, Shribriddhi Properties,
he has & strong command in the
real estate industry specializing in
sirategic owversight, project
management, and financial
governance, Adept in professional
aceounting, he is an expert in
budgeting, financial analvais and
management  along with sk
nanageent,

September 28, 2020

Relationship
other Directors,

with |

Manager or with KMP

Father of Mrs. Chanchal

Rungta.




Number of meestings
attended  during the
financial year 2024-
25

Mao. of meetings held:6

No. af meetinga attended:&

Mo, of meetings hekld:6

Mo, of meetings attended:6

List of cutaide
Directorships held in
ather Puhlic
Companiea (excluding
[oreigr Companies
and Companies under
Section B of the
Campanies Act, 2013|

1] Purbanchal Prestressed Lid

2] Maurva Trading Co. Ltd

3 Bangrahalava Tmmber
Crafta Lid

4] Hotahoti Wood Products Lid

5] Kamini Finance 8 Investment

Co. Lid,

and

1} Purbanchal Prestressed Lid

2] Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited

3} Kamini Finance & Investment Co.
Ltd,

The Listed entity from
which Director has
regigned n last thres
VEars

Chairman [/ member
of the Committees of
Board of Directors of
other companies in
which he iz a Director.

of Appointment or Re-
APPANEENT

Terms and conditions

Sangrahalaya Timber and
Crafts Lid
Hotaheti Wood Products
Lt
Kamini Finance
Inveatment Co. Lid.

s

Wisisth Chay Vyapar Limited
Kamini Finance & Investment
Co. Led:

Mr. Chaned Ratan Modl |s lable
to retive by rotation.

Az per the resolution (Item Ne.3) of
the Motice convening this meeting
read with Explanatory statements
theretn, Mr. DMohit Parakh s
proposed to be appointed for a
second term of 5 |Five) consecutive
 yeargs commencing from  the
conclusion of this AGM il the 49th
| AGM of the Company.

Remuneration
proposed 0 be paid

Remuneration last
drawn by such
persen, il applicable
[As per last auadited
balance sheet dabed
March 31, 2024)

NIL

*Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committee.

In addition to the above, other requisite details required relating to aforesaid
appointment [ re-appointment have already been provided elsewhere in the
Board’s Report.




THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:
The way to vote electronically on CDSL e-Voting avstem consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Btep 1: Access to CDSL e-Volng system
Btep 2: Cast your vote electronically on CDSL: e-Voling system

Details on Step 1 18 mentioned below:

a) Login method for e-Voting for Individual SBhareholders holding securities in demat
moide

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 20020 on e-YVoting facility provided by the Listed
Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowsd to vote
through their demat account maintaimed with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their maobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility,

Login method for Individual shareholders helding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type Login Method
shareholders

‘1) Existing users who have opted for Easl [ Easlest:

Individual Ugers who have opted for Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Sharehalders existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
helding securities in e-Voting page without any further authentication, The users to login
Demat mode with East /| Easiest are requested to visit CD3L website www.cdslindia, com
Sl and click on login icon 8% New System Myeasi Tab and then use your
exigting Myveasi username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able (o see the o
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-Voting is in progreas
as per the information provided by company, On chicking the e-Veting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voling scrvice
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voling during the mecting. Additionally, there
are also links provided to access the svstem of all e-Vobting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers
wehaite directly, The menu will have links of 2-Voting service provider
e, CDSL, Chok on CD3EL 1o cast vour vole.




3) Users not registered for Easl / Easiest:

If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is
available at CDEL website www . cdslindia.com and click on login S Mew
Systemn Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voling page by providing
Dremat Account Mumber and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available
on www.cdalindia.com home page, The avstemn will authenticate the
usetr by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account, After successiul authentication, aser will be able 1o
ses the e-Voting aption where the e-Voting is in progress and alsc able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual

Sharcholders
Holding securities in 1)Users registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

demat mode with - . ) i
NSDL Existing 1DeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz,

hitps ! fegervices. nedloom either on & personal computer or on &
mobile. On the e-Services home page, click on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is available under TDeAS" section, this will
prompt you to enter vour existing User ID amd Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see eVoting services
under Value added services, Click on "Access to e-Vating” under e-
Voting gervicezs and you will be able to see e-Voling page. Click on
Company name ot e-Voling service provider e, CDEL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of COSL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voling period & voting during the meeting,

Users not registered for NSDL [DeAS facility:

I you are not Tegistered for [DeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https: ) feservices nadl.com. Select *Register Omiline for
IDeAS Portal” or click at
htips: / Jeservices nadl.eom [SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRes. jsp

e-Voting website of NEDL:

Visit the e-Voting webaite of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL:

https: ! fwaww.evoling nsdl.com,/ either on a personal computer or on a
mabile,

Onece the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
*Lozin®

which s available under Shareholder | Member® aection. A new
acreen will open,

You will have to enter your User 11 [i.e., your sixteen-digit demat
account number




held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown
an the screen.

Alter successful authentication, vou will be redirected to NSDL
Depozitory site

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting
gervice

provider {.e., CDSL and you will be redirected to e-Voling website af
CDSL for

casting your vote during the remote e-Vating period & voting during the
meesting

OTPF Based Login

For TP based bogzin VoL CR click
on bitps: f feservices nsdlcom / SecureWeb /evoting /evotinglogin. jsp.
You will have to enter your B-digit DP 1D, B-digit Client Id, PAN No,,
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. Aflter successil
authentication, you will be redirected to NEDL Depository site wherein
vou can see e-Voting papge. Click on company nameé or &-Voting
service provider name and vou will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting vour vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

e-Voting mobile application of NEDL:

Sharcholders /| Members can also download NSDL Maobile App *NSDL
Speade” fcility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience,

NMSDL Mobile App is available on

‘AppSmre B Google Play

Individual
Sharcholders
(holding securities in
demat mode] logEin
through their
depnsitary
participants

You can also logm wsing the login eredentials of your demat account through
vour Depository Participant registered with NSDL [ CDSL for &-Voting facility,
Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option, Click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to BSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful
authenticabion, whersm you can see e-Vaoting feature. Click on Company name
or e-Voting sorvice provider e, CDSL and vou will be redirected to e-Voting
website of CDSEL for casting your vole during the remote e-Voting period &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unabls 16 petrieve User 10 ¢ Password are advised $o use Formeg
User 1T and Forget Password opiion availlable at above mentioned website,
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding secyrities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository e, NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL can contact CDSL helpdeak by sending a
request at helpdesk evolingfcdslindia com ar
contact at toll free no, 1800 21 09911

Individual Sharehalders holding Members facing an:,r-technicaj issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

- 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

{b} Login Method for ¢-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
sccurities in physical mode.

How 1o Log-in to CDSL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of CDSL. Open wely browser by typing the following URL:
woanwevotingindia.com either on a personal computer o on a molile,

Z. Onee the homs page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login™ which is
available under ‘Shareholder [ Member” section,

3. A new screen will opene You will hase to enter yvour User [, vour Password [ OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen,

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services e, IDEAS, you can log-in at
https: ! feservices,nsdlcom, with vour existing IDEAS login. Onee you log-in to NSDL e-

sarvices alter using vour log-in credentiala, elick an e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 1.e., Cast yvour vote electronically,

4, Your User 1D details are given below:

| 8

A

LM | Manner of holding shares e, Demat | Your User [ is:
{MEDL or CDEL} or P}_L_'._'Ei-;:ﬁl
For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP 1D followed by & Digit
account with NSDL Client 1D

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** gned
Client D iz 12***** then your user 1D is
Imauuili lgiiﬁ#ﬁl

For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneliciary 1D,
acvcount with CDSL
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For example, if your B:Jlnﬁ:;iar:,' iD-lg
[geesmsnernaneis then your user ID is

] Eﬂfﬂ:'rﬂr!‘ﬂtﬁ*!

For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form registered with the Company.

For example, of folio number is 001 and
EVEM iz 130720 then wuser [[¥ 1s
13072000 1=

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual sharehotders are given belowr:

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to
login and cast your vote,

If you are using CDSL e-Voting system for the fArst time, enter your 10 digit alpha-
rumeric PAN issaed by Income Tax Department,

However, shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company [
Depository  Participant are requested to use the sequence oumber sent by
Company/ETA or contact Company /ETA

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account
or m the company records in arder to logim, If both the details are not recorded with
the depository or company, please enter the member id [/ folio number in the Dividend
Bank details field.

. After entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT" tab,

Shareholders holding shares in phyaical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, sharehaolders holding shares in demat form will now reach
Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field, Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are cligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDEL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to kesp vour password conbdential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used onby for e-
vialing on the regolutions contained in this Notice.

. Chek on the BEVEN for the Company Mame on which you choose to vote. On the voting
page, vou will see "“RESOLUTION DESCRIFTION™ and against the same the option
"WES,NO* for voting, Select the ophion YES or N as desired, The option YES implics
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you diasent to the
Resolution.




h. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINE" if you wish to view the entire Resclution
details, After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™,
A confirmation box will be displayed. Il you wigh to confirm vour vote, click on "0K",
elee to change your vote, click on *CANCEL" and accordingly madify your vote.

Cnce vou *CONFIEM® vour vobe on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote. You can also take a print of the yvotes cast by clicking on *Click here to
print® aption on the Voting page. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User 1D and the image vertfication code and click on Forgot
Password & cnter the details as prompted by the system,

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be
made available to scrutinizer for verification.

{c) Facility for Non - Individual Sharehalders and Custodians -Remote Voting

Mon-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc) and
Custodians are required to log on to wywwevolingindia, com and register themselves in
the “Corporates” module

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able 10 link the account{s] for
which they wish o vole o,

The list of accounts linked in  the login should be mailed to
helpdesk evotinegcdslindia, com and on approval of the sccounts they would be able
to cast ther vote,

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have

isgued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the

sysiem for the scrutiniger to verify the same.

Alternatively, non-individual shareholders are requited to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter ete. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the email address vis; nepacl | BEemail.com, if they have voted from mdividoal @b b not
upleaded same in the CD3EL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.




PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING
LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS
PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio
MNo., Name of sharcholder, scanned copy of the share certificate {front
and back), PAN (sell attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials
(CDSL-16 digit beneficliary 1D or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLIDY, Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN [self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from
the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an cmail to
holpdesk.evotingacdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542743,

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means
may be addressed to, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services {India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East], Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk. evotingricdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

M/s. Mankani &% associates- Mrs. Priva Mankani, Practising Company
Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer o scrutinize the e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall not later than
Jithree) days of conclusion of the meeting make a consolidated scrutinizer’s
Report [which includes remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM) of the
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
autherised by her in writing who shall eountersipn the same and declare the
results of the voting forthwith.

.. Bubject to casting of requisite number of votes in favour of the resolution(s), it
shall be deemed 1o be passed on the date of AGM of the Company.

. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Eeport shall be placed on the
Companys website hittps:/ /nepacl.in/index. hitml and on the website of CDSL
immediately after declaration of resulis of pazsing of the resolution at the AGM
of the Company and the same shall also be communicated to the Metropolitan
Stock Exchange of India where the shares of the Company are listed.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Te be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Falio No.: DP-I No.: Cliernid-IT No,

Name of
Member(s):

Name of the Proxy holder:

Registered Address:

Number of Shares Held

I, hereby record my presence of the 44th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company held on Thursday, August 28, 2025 at 5:00 P.M at 5, Gorky Terrace,
2 Floor, Kolkata-700 017.

Signature of the Member / Represenlative / Proxy Holder®

* Strike out whichever 1s nof applicable




FORM OF PROXY
{Pursuant o Sectionn. 105(6) of the Companies Act, 201.3 and Rule 193] of the Companies
fManagement ard Administration) Rules, 2014)

Folio No.: DRI No.: hent 1D Na.:

Name of the Member{s): Ermgarl M _

Registered Address;

I/ We, being  members, holding shares of NORTH EASTERN PUBLISHING AND
ADVERTISING CO LIMITED hereby appoint:

7. Name: E-muxil I
Address; or failing lam/ her

2 Noame: F-rrecail Ied

Address: ar failing him/ her

3. Name:

Address:

as my / our Proxy to vote for me / us, on my / our behall at the 44th ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING of the Company held on Thursday, August 28, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. und

at any adjournment thereaf in respect of the resolutions as mentioned in the Company's
Notice.:

Signed this day of 2025, Signature of Member

Reverne

Signature of Proxy holderfz): 1.

.
3.

NOTE: The Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited af the Registered Office aof
the Company, 5, Gorky Terrace, 27 Fioor, Kolkata- 70001 7 not later than 48 hours before
the time for holding the meeting.




Route map for the location of the venue of the 44th Annual General
Meeting of North Eastern Publishing and Advertising Co Ltd.




Board’s Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

The Directors are pleased to present the 44th Annual Report on the business and
operations of North Eastern Publishing and Advertising Co Lid. (*the Company”)
together with the Audited Financial Staternents for the financial year ended March

31, 2025.

Financial Highlights

During the vear under review, performance of your company 15 as under:

(% in 000)
Particulars 2024-25

Revenue from Operations B747

2023-24

Other Income 8013

573

“Total Income 16,760
Less: Expenditure 10,994

573
48338

Profit before Tax 5766

| Provision [or Taxation 8

 (4264) |
0

Profit / Loss for the year after Taa 5766

Add: Balance brought forward (4,04 879)
from last year

14264
(4,00,615)

| Balance Profit | Loss carried (3,99,114)
forward to Balance Sheet

(4,04 B749)

Operations and State of Company's Affairs

The Company's performance is influenced by a range of factors, including
market dynamics and external conditions. While we continue to actively navigate
and mitigate these challenges, we remain optimistic about the Company’s future

prospects,

Dividend

Considering the non-availability of profits during the financial year ended March
31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed any dividend

on equity shares.




SBhare Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is 2 40,51,00,000/ - divided into
4{(),51,00,00 Equity Shares of face value of 210/ - each.

The lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company is 2
40,50,60,000 /- divided inta 40,50,60,00 Equity Shares of face value of T 10/-
each.

There is no change in the 1ssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the
Company during the year under review.

General Reserves

Mo amount has been transferred to the General Reserve for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025.

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company have ocourred between the end of the financial year of the Company
to which the financial statements relate and the date on which this Report
has been signed.

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

There has been no change(s) of business of the Company or in the nature of
business carried on by the Company during the financial year under review.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators / courts /
tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's
operations in futore

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been
passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals that may impact the going concern
status and the operations of the Company in future,

Particulars of contracts and arrangement with Related Parties

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties during the
financial year 2024-25 as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies {Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014
were held in the Ordinary Course of Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis.
There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the
financial year 2024-25, which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
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Suitable disclosures as required under Ind AS-24 have been made in the Notes
to the financial statements.

Accordingly, the disclosure in Form AOC-2, pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is not applicable on the Company. The policy on Related Party
Transactions c¢an be accessed on the website of the Company
https:/ /nepacl.in/investors-info.html

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company has adequate systemn of internal control to safeguard and protect
from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are
properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company
is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the
books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of
the company checks and verifies the internal contrel and monitors them in
accordance with policy adopted by the company.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency Resolution application
was made or proceeding was inithated by / against the Company under the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 {as amended). Further,
no application or proceeding by / against the Company under the provisions of
the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (as amended) is pending as on March
31, 2025,

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company does nel have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate
Company as defined under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance ol
Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, no unclaimed / unpaid matured deposits or
interest thereon was due as on March 31, 2025,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, CSR is not applicable
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to the Company during the financial year under review. Accordingly, no C5R
initiatives or expenditures were undertalken.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The provision of Scction 134{m] of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption do not apply to the Company.
There was no foreign intflow or outflow during the year under review.

Risk Management Policy

The Company’s Risk Management Policy recognizes that risk is an integral
part of any business and the Company is committed to manage the risk in a
proactive and efficient manner,

Number of Board Meetings

During the year, 6 (six) meetings of the Board were held. The details of meetings
of the Board held during the financial year 2024-25 have been provided in the
Corporate Governance Report which [orms part of the Report.

Audit Committee
The details pertaining to the composition of the Audit Committee are included
in the Corporate Governance Report which 15 a part of this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92{3) and 134(3){a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual
Return as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company's website
https:/ /nepacl.in/investors-info.html

Details of significant & material orders passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunal

No significant & material orders have been passed by any regulator or court or
tribunal against the Company,

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism /| Whistle Blower policy and it has
established adequate vigil mechanism for 1ts employees and directors to report
concern about unethical practice. No person has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The latest Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower
Palicy i1s available at https:/ /nepacl.in/investors-info himl




Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the
provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

Internal Auditor

M/s. Gaurav Manoj & Co., practicing chartered accountants, perform the duties
of Internal Auditor of the Company and his report is reviewed by the Audit
Committee from time to time,

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Your Company's Board is duly constituted in compliance with the requirement
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations’),

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet with the criteria of
independence as required under sub section 7 of Section 149 of the Compames
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulatbons.

The Board is also of the opinion that Independent Directors meet with the criteria
of independence under sub section 6 of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation
15{1){b) of the Listing Regulations,

There has been ne change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have registered themselves / renewed their
registration pursuant to the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of databank
of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019,

The Board confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of
integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) in terms of Rule
8(3) (iiia) of the Companies ({Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Following re-appointment of Directors had been made during the year:

a. Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chand Ratan Modi
(DIN No: 00343685), Non — Executive Non-Independent Director, who retires by
rotation and being cligible, offers himsell for re-appointment at the ensuing
Annual General Mecting.

b. Mr, Mohit Parakh, Independent Dircctor had been appointed by the Members
at the 39" Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2020 for a term
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of 5 (Five] consecutive years till the conclusion of the 44 AGM of the
Company. The said tenure will expire due to efflux of time. The Board vide
its Meeting held on May 17, 2025 had approved the re-appointment of Mr.
Mohit Parakh for a second term of 5 [Five) consecutive years, cOmmencing
from the conclasion of this AGM till the 49th AGM of the Coampany, subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.. The
brief profile of Mr. Mohit Parakh and other relevant information under
Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings with respect to Director seeking re-appoinment have been provided
in the Notice convening Anhual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the
Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025
are:

a, Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani, Chiel Financial Officer
. Ms. Buchita Pareek, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company has put in place an Induction and Familiarisation Programme for
Independent Directors of the Company. The details of such Familiarization
Programme are mentioned in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms

part of this Annual Report and the same is available at the link
hitps: / [nepacl.in/investors-info. html

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In terms of requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Regulations, the meeting of Independent Dhirectors was separately held
on February 14, 2025 during the year under report.

Company’s Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

The Company has been following a policy namely “*Nomination and
Remuneration Policy”™ with respect to appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel.
The appointment of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel is subject
to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NREC).




Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is in conformity with
the requirement of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations. The objectives and key features of this Policy are:

1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive
attributes and independence of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMF)
and SBenior Management Personnel and recommend to the Board, a policy
relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personne] and other
employees.

1A, For cvery appointment of an Independent Director, the Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on
the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capalalities
reguired of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director shall have the capabilities identified in
such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee may:

a. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. Consider candidates [rom a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

. Consider the tme commitments of the candidates,
2. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who
may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management;

4, Directors’ induction and continued updation as and when required of their
roles, responsibilitics and habilities;

5. Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its
Commitiees and Directors including Independent Directors /| Non-Executive

Directars;

The aforesaid Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been uploaded an the
website of your Company at https:/ /nepaclin/investors-info.html

Secretarial Standards

The Company has devised adequate systems to ensure compliance with the
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and such systems are operating effectively




Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), your
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any,

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and appled them
consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2025 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

¢] the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the mamtenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irrepulanties;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e] proper internal financial controls are followed by the Company and that such
financial controls are adequate and are operahing effectively; and

[} the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating eflectively during the Inancal yvear ended March 31, 2025,

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the vear under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors
have not reported, any incident of fraud committed in your Company by its
Officers or Employees, to the Audit Committee and [ or to the Board under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 details of which needs to be
rentioned in this Report.

Auditors

M/s 5. Mandal & Co, Chartered] Accountants (Firm Registration No: 314 188E),
was appointed by the Members of the Company at the 43th Annual General
Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second consecutive term of
3 {Five) years commencing from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
held on September 28, 2024 till the conclusion of the 48th Annual General
Meeting to be held in the financial year 2029-30, The Auditors’ Report on the
Annual Accounts of the Company forms part of the Annual Report of the
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Company, The Auditors® Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Compames
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel Rules, 2014 and
amended Regulation 244 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has based
on the recommendation of Audit Committee approved appointment of M/ s.
Mankani & Associates, (Firm Registration Number - S2018UP613300) Company
Secretaries, represented by its Partner, Ms. Priva Mankani (ACS No, 34744, C,
P. No. 17947), to conduct the Sccretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure - I to this report. The Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

Disclosure as required under Rule B(5) (xii] of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014

The disclosure as per Rule &(5) (xii) of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014,
as amended, is not applicable to the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Investments and Guarantees

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not made any investment,
has not piven any loans, has not provided any guarantees, has not provided any
security in connection with any loan, has not acquired securities by way of
subscription, purchase or otherwise, in excess of the thresholds provided in
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Managerial Remuneration, Particulars of Employees and related disclosure

Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) and Rule 5{2} of the Companies [Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows:
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Statement on Maternity Benefit Compliance

Pursuant to the requirements of the Maternity Benelit Act, 1961, the Company
confirms its commitment to full compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Act.

During the reporting period, no employee availed maternity benefits. However,
the Company has established the necessary policies and mechanisms to ensure
that all entitlements under the Act—such as paid maternity leave, nursing
breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity leave—are provided as
and when required.

The Company remains fully commmitted to supporting its employees and ensuring
a safe, inclusive, and compliant workplace environment,

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

Our Company irmly believes in providing a safe, supportive and harasasment
free workplace for each and every individual working for the Company through
various interventions and practicee and has zero tolerance for sexual
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harassment at workplace, It is the continuous endeavour of the management of
the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is
free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. No
complaints relating to the sexual harassment had been received during the year
under report.

Annual Performance

Evaluation of the Directors In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rules issued there under and the Listing Regulations, based on
the criteria such as number of Board and Committee meetings attended during
the vear, contributions to the decision making and relevant expertise to the
Board etc., the Board of Directors has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the Directors based on the
criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee. In a
separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent
Directors, the Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole was
cvaluated.

Corporate Governance

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from the Practicing

Company Secretary confirming corporate governance requirements as stipulated
under Listing Regulations and confirming that none of the Board of Directors of
the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as a Director of the Company as prescribed under Listing Regulations
is enclosed as Annexure - II and forms part of this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Indian financial services sector has demonstrated resilience and growth,
driven by factors such as increased retail participation, technological
advancements, and favourable regulatory developments. The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has implemented measures to enhance market
transparency and investor protection, fostering a conducive environment for
broking lirms.

The company has implemented a robust risk management framework to identify,
assess, and mitigate potential risks. Key risks include:

« Market Volatility: Fluctuations in market conditions can impact trading
volumes and profitabihty.

Regulatory Changes: Adherence to evolving SEBI regulations requires
continuous monitoring and compliance.
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» Cybersecurity Threats: Protecting client data and maintaining the integrity
of trading systems is paramount.
Mitigation strategies involve regular risk assessments, compliance audits, and
investment in cybersecurity infrastructure.

The company adheres to the highest standards of corporate governance,
ensuring transparency and accountability in all operations. The Board of
Directors comprises experienced professionals with diverse expertise, and
various commitiecs oversee key areas such as audit, risk management, and
rermuneration.

The company is optimistic about the future, with plans to:

» Enhance Digital Presence: Leverage digital marketing and online platforms
to attract a wider audience.,

Expand Product Offerings: Introduce new financial products to meet the
evolving needs of clients.

Focus on Sustainability: Implement environmentally and socially
responsible practices in business operations.

The company remains committed to delivering value to its stakeholders
through strategic initiatives, operational excellence, and a client-centric
approach. The management is confident in navigating the challenges of
the financial markets and achieving sustained growth in the coming
:r'tf'l-]rﬂ.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management
Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations, Although the expectations are
based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ,
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‘Annexure — II'

Report on Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our philosophy of Corporate Governance is founded on the pillars of [airness,
accountability, disclosures and transparency, equal treatment to all the
stakeheolders and social responsibility. Your Company believes that Corporate
Governance extends beyond corporate laws. Its fundamental objective is not merely
to fulfil legal requirements, but also the adherence to systems and procedures,
ensuring the commitment of the Board of Directors in managing the Company's
affairs in a transparent manner to maximize the long-term value of the
staleholders at large.

Your Company has adopted an appropriate Corporate Governance framework to
ensure timely and accurate disclosure on all material matters including the
financial position, performance, ownership and governance of the Company

Your Company's policies and practices relating to the Corporate Governance are
discussed in the following sections viz..

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors to have a balanced Board Structure, The Board has
five Directors (including one Woman Directors), out of which one is Executive
Director, two are Mon - Executive Non- Independent Director and two are Non-
Executive, Independent Directors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of your Company is Non-Executive,
Independent Director.

The Board has adequate mix of skills, expertise and competencies for running the
business of the Company. The following chart specifies the same.

Kame of | Desipnation /[ | Operations Management = Administration
Director | Category

Mr. Mohit | Chairman, v v v
Parakh | Independent
Director

Mr. Managing
Champa Director
Lal Pareclc |




II-.:'Ir. Chand | Non-

Ratan Modi | Executive 8
Non-
Independent
Director

Mrs. Mon-
Chanchal Executive &
Rungta Non-
Independent
Director
Mr. Independent
Jayanla Direcior
Chowdhury

Composition of the Board, details of other directorships, committee positions
are given below:

Name Directors | Category | Relationship No. of No. of Membership/
Identifica | of with other | Direct | Chairpersonship in
tion Directors | Directors orshi | Board Committees
Number pPs |including this Co.)
(DIN) held Member | Chairperson
(inclu
ding
this
== Co.)*
Mr. Mohit | 02033194 | Chairman, 8|
Parakh Independe
| | nt Director
Mr. 00030815 | Managing
Champa Director
Lal
Pﬂmck ——r— =

Mr. 00343685 | Non- Father of
Chand Executive Mrs.

Ratan L Non- | Chanchal
Modi Independe | Rungta

nt Director

Mrs. 07590027 | Mon- Daughter of |
Chanchal Executive | Chand Ratan
Rungta & Non- | Modi

Independe
) nt Director
Mr. 10597724 | Independe | None
Jayanta nt Director
Chowdhu
ry

T




Notes:

Number of Directorships held excludes Directorships in Private Limited
Companies, Foreign Companies, High Value Debt Listed Entities, Companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (earlier Section 25 of the Companies
Act, 1956) and Alternate directorships. Only covers Membership / Chairpersonship
of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Listed and
Unlisted Public Limited Companies.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Board Commitiees
and a Chairman of more than 5 such Committees, across all Companies in which
he [/ she 15 a Director.

None of the Directors holds directorships in more than 20 Companies and more
than 10 Public Companies pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Board of Directors met 6 (six) times during the year under review. The
date of the Board Meetings and attendance thereat are furnished hereunder:

o | Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors
present
April 04, 2024 | 4

May 27, 2024 (4

July 01, 2024 '
4 [July30,2024
o November 12, 2024
| & | February 07, 2025

1
2
3

Attendance of individual Dircctors at the Board Meetings and last AGM:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings | Attendance at last
Attended AGM held on
September 28, 2024

Mr. Mohit Parakh )  Yes
| Mr. Champa Lal Pareek Yes

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi ' Yes

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta 6 Yes |
E'r.".:r E.l.!..:'-EI-J:I.LEd Chowdhury Tes |

Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by Non- Executive
Directors:

As on March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any Share [
Convertible instruments in the Company.

Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence, which are given
under Section 14916) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 156(1)(b] of the
Listing Regulations and are Independent of the Management of the Company.




All the Independent Directors have given declaration of independence as per the
requircments of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

During the year under review, meetings of Independent Directors of the Company,
as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25(3) of the Listing Regulations, was held on February 14, 20235,

Familiarization Programme

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has in place Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to
familiarize them about the Company and their rale, rights and responsibilities in
the Company. The details of Familiarization Programme imparted during the
financial year 2024- 25, are uploaded on the website of the Company and can be
accesscd through web-link https:/ /nepacl.in/investors-info html

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company’s Board of Directors has constituted the following Statutory
Committees to comply the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Regulations, viz.!

[. Audit Commitiee;
I Nomination and Kemuneration Committee;

[l1. Stakeholders Relationship Committee; and

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Scoretary and
the respective Chairman of these Committees, determines the frequency of
the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations of the Commuttees
are submitted to the Board for their approval.

The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with
the requirement of the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Whistle Blower Paolicy (Vigil mechanism);

b} Policy on Evaluation of performances of Board of Directors;

) Nomination and Remuneration Policy;

d) Risk Management Policy;

2] Policy on Diversity of Board of Directors;

f) Policy on Succession Planning for the Board and Senior Management,
g] Policy on Disclosure of Material Events [ Information;

h} Policy for Preservation of Documents and Archival;

i) Policy on Familiarisation Programme of Independent Directors,
i} Policy on Related Party Transactions;

k} Policy on Determination of Material Subsidiary.




Audit Committee

The Composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 20235,
consists of following members viz.

1. Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury - Chairman
2. Mr. Chand Ratan Modi - Member
3. Mr. Mohit Parakh — Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

. Oversecing our Company s financial reporting process and disclosure of
its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is
correct, sufficient and credible;

. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, and
replacement, remuneration, and terms of appeintment of the statutory
auditor and the fixation of audit fee;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and
the effectiveness of audit process;

. Approval of pavments to the statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by statutory auditors;

Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon before submission to the Board for appraval,
with particular reference to:

. Matters required to be stated in the Director's responsibility
statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of Section
134{3])(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

. Changes, il any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same;

. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise
of judgment by management;

. Bignificant adjustments made in the financial statements ansing
out of audit findings.;

5. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to
[inancial statements;

. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
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7. Qualifications and modified opinions in the draft audit report.

f. Rewviewing with the management, the quarterly, half-vearly and annual
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval,;

. Serutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

. Valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever it is
NEeCessary;

Evaluation of internal hinancal controls and nsk management
systems;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our
Company with related parties;

. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document [ prospectus / notice and the report
submitied by the momtonng agency rn|;1r|i!uring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps mn this matter;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report
their genuine coONCerns or grievances;

. Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutery and
internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems;

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the intermal audit department, staffing and senionity of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and
follow up thereon;

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;




. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commendces, about
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

Looking into the reasons for substantal defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

5. Approval of appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing

the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the
same is existing;

. Carmying out any other flunctions as provided under the Companies Act,
the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws;

. To formulate, review and male recommendations to the Board to amend
the Audit Committee charter from time to time;

. Overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the
chairman of the Audit Committee directly hearing grievances of
victimization of the employees and directors, who used the vigil
mechanism to reporl genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional
Cases;

. Recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment and removal
of the external auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for payment
for any other services;

. Reviewing the utilization of loans and / or advances from investment by
the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or
10% of the assct size of the subsidiary, whichever 1s lower including
existing loans / advances / investments; and

z. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of
schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed
entity and its sharcholders.

The Company's Audit Committee met & [Five) times durning the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 viz. April 04, 2024; May 27,
2024; July 30, 2024; November 12, 2024 and February 07, 2025,

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audil
Committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025:
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Members Designation & No. of Meetings
LA . Category Attended
Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury | Chairman, Non- 2
Executive - Independent
Dhirector

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi Member, Non-Executive
& Non-Independent
Director

Mr. Mohit Parakh Mcml:Er, Non-Execulive
- Independent Director

Notes:

The CFO was an invitee to the Audit Committee Meetings and she attended
the meetings. All the members of the Audit Committee have requisite
accounting and financial management expertisc,

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury, Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the
previous Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2024 and responded
to the queries raised by the shareholders,

Yearly disclosure relating to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 was placed before the Committee.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the
Board of Directors.

I1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on
March 31, 2025, consists of following members viz.

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Chairman
Mr. Chand Ratan Moodi Member
M, Mohit Parakh Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee,

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

a. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive altrnibutes and
independence of a director and recomimend to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;




b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the
Board;

¢. Devising a policy on Board diversity,

d. Identify persons who are gualified to become directors or who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out
evaluation of every director’'s performance;

€. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and
compensation matters;

f, Determining our Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for
executive directors including pension rights and any compensation payment,
and determining remuneration packages of such directors;

g. Determine compensation levels payable to the semior management
personnel and other staff (as deemed necessary], which shall be market-
related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

h. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the
context of the then current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

i. Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation
committee under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benehts and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

j. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation,
by an employee of any applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

The Sccurhes and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading] Repulations, 2015; or

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohimtion of
Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securities
Market) Regulations, 2003.

k. Determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
indt:pr_'.nu:h:nl director, on the basis of the report of ;Hfrﬁ‘.-rmmme evaluation of
mdependent directors;

l. Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors
and f or are statutonly preseribed under any law to be attended to by such
comimittee;




m. Recommend to the Board, all remuaneration, in whatever form, payable to
semor management; and

n. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director.
The persen recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent
director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

1. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

2. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard
to diversity; and

3, Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration policy in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations and in order to harmonize the aspirations of human resources
consistent with the goals of the Company which inter alia includes
Company’s policy on Board Diversity, selection, appointment and
remuneration of Directors, criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a Director and criteria for performance
evaluation of the Directors.

Composition and attendance at Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings:

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) times
during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 27, 2024 and July
30, 2024,

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year ended March 31,
2025

Members  Dezsignation & No. of Meetings
Category Attended
Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury | Chairman, Non- 1
Executive - Independent
—— e et 2 - — Dir‘:':t‘:lr

Mr. Chand Ratan Moodi | Member, Non-Executive
& Non-Independent
Director

Mr, Mohit Parakh Member, Non-Executive
- Independent Director
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Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations, the Board of Directors has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the Directors based on
the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the
Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The criteria for performance
evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and [unctioning etc.
The criteria for performance evaluation of Committees of the Board included
aspects like composition of Committees, effectiveness of Committee mectings
etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of the individual Directors
included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committes mestings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings etc.

Remuneration to Directors for the financial Year 2024-25:

In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and in hne
with the Company's remuneration policy, the Independent Directors have
not been paid any sitting fees, commission, stock options, or any other form
of compensation or benefits, whether in cash or kind, for attending Board
meetings, Committee meetings, or for any other services rendered in their
capacity as Directors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

The Company acknowledges the valuable guidance and oversight provided
by the Independent Directors in steering the Company’s strategic direction
and ensuring effective governance, even though they have voluntarily
[oregone any remuneration.

This policy of non-remuneration reflects the commitment of the Independent
Directors to uphold high standards of ethical and fiduciary responsibility,
aligning with the long-term interests of the Company and its stakeholders.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

During the financial year 2024-25, no remuneration was paid to the
Executive Directors of the Company. This includes:

« Salary
« Perquisites and allowances




Commission
Performance-linked incentives
= Stock options or any other form of compensation

The Executive Dircctors have not drawn any remuneration, either from the
Company for the said financial year,

This disclosure is made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and relevant corporate governance requirements. It
also reflects the Executive Directors' commitment to the long-term goals and
sustainahbility of the Company without drawing financial benefit in their
executive capacity during the reporting period.

III. Stakeholders’' Relationship Committee

Composition and attendance at Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Meeting:

In compliance with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has
constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee inter alia, to consider
and review the complaints received [rom shareholders. Detail of share
transfers / transmissions, if any, approved by the Committee are placed at
the Board Meetings from time to time.

The Company's Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 2 (Two] times
during the inancial year ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 27, 2024 and July
30, 2024,

The Iollowing table prescnts the details of attendance at the Stakeholders’
Relationship Commitiee meetings held during the vear ended March 31,
2025:

Members | Designation & No. of Meetings
Category Attended

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta Chairperson, Non- 2
Executive & MNon:
Independent Dhrector

My, Jayanta Chowdhury | Member, Non-Executive
- Independent Director

‘Mr. Chand Ratan Moodi | Member, Non-Executive
& Non-Independent
Director




Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee and is the
Comphance Officer of the Company.

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta, Chairperson of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee attended the previous Annual General Meeting held on September
28, 2024,

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee are as follows:

a. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new [ duplicate certificates,
general meetings cte.;

b, Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
sharcholders;

c. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in
respect of various services being rendered by the Regstrar & Share Transfer

Agent;

d. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for

reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants / annual reports /[ statutory notices by the shareholders of
the Company; and

e, Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Listing
Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder, each as amended or other applicable law.

SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints
redressal system.

The salient features of this system are centralised database of all complaints,
anline upload of Action Taken Reports [ATRs) by the concerned companies
and online viewing by investors of achions taken on the complaint and its
eurrent status.

Your Company has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to
resolve all investor complaints received through SCORES or otherwise within
the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint




However, SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022 /0150 dated November 0V, 2022 has
mandated the investors to first take up their grievances for redressal with the
Company, through their designated persons [/ officials who handle issues
relating to compliance and redressal of investor grievances. In case, the
Company fails to redress the complaint within the statutory timeline, the
investor may then file his / her complaint in SCORES.

No Shares are lying in Demat Suspense Account [ unclaimed suspense
Account. Hence, the disclosure of the same is not applicable.

There were no shareholder complaints [ requests pending at the beginning of
the year. Also, no shareholder complaints / requests have been received
dunng the year,

Exclusive e-mail id for Investor Grievances: nepacl | 7iggmail com.

Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal

SEBI, by consolidating its Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_|AD-
1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, read with the corrigendum cum

amendment Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE 1AD
1/P/CIR/2023 /135 dated August 4, 2023 and amendment Circular having

No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE IAD-3/P/CIR/2023/191 dated December 20,
2023 has issued a Master Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE /OIAE_1AD-
3/P/CIR/2023/195 dated December 28, 2023 on "Online Resolution of
Disputes in the Indian Securnties Market”,

Through the said Circulars, SEBI has established a common ODR Portal to
harness online conciliation and arbitration for resolution of disputes in the
Indian Securities Market.

Post exhausting the option to resolve grievances with the RTA / Company
directly and through existing SCORES platform, the investors can initate
dispute resolution through the ODR Portal (https:/ /smartodr.in/login) and
the same can also be accessed through the Company's website
https: / fnepacl in/contact-us himl.




2. General Body meetings

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs)
were held:

Year Venue Date Time Special Resolutions
passed

2023- | Registered 28.09.2024 | 10.00
24  |Office A.1m.

20232- Registered 22.09.2023 | 2:00

23 | Office p.m. — T
2021- | Registered 24.09.2022 | 10.00 | Shifting of Registered Office

22 Office a.m. of Company from the State of
Assam to. the State of West
Bengal, under the jurisdiction
of Registrar of Companies,
Kolkata and consequent
amendments to the
Memorandum of Association
of the Company

Details of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during the year:

Year | Venue |Date | Time | Special Resolutions passed
2024- | Registered 24.06.2024 | 2 a. Appointment of Mr, Jayvanta
25 Office p.m. Chowdhury [N

010597724) a5 Non-

Executive Independent
Director.

. Approval for increase in
overall borrowing limits of
the Company as pe
Section 180(1) (c) of The

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot:

There was no special resclution passed through postal ballot during the
financial year 2024-25. Also, as at date, no Special Resolubion 15 proposed to
be passed through Postal Ballot.

3. Disclosures
a, Statutory Compliance

The Company has complied with rales and regulations prescribed by
the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of India and any
other statutory authority relating to capital market.
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b. Related Party Transactions

The Company has adopted the Related Party Transaction Policy, which
iz available on its website and can be accessed at web link
https:/ /nepacl.in/investors-info.html.

The details of all significant transactions with related parties are
periodically placed before the Audit Commiitee. The Company has
entered into related party transactions as set out in notes to accounts,
which do not have potential conflict with the interests of the Company
at large.

. Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associale, or joint venture
company as on March 31, 2025. Accordingly, the requirements relating
to consolidated financial statements and related disclosures are not
applicable for the inancial year 20294-25,

. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

In line with Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the
Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to
report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
incidents of fraud or violation of Code of Conduct that could adversely
unpact the Company's operations, business performance and [/ or
reputation, in a secure and confidential manner. The Company has also
provided the complainant direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Further, no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been placed on the website of the
Company and web-link thereto is:
info. htmi.




4. Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the

Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable.

Non-Mandatory Requirements

Particulars

The Board

Non-Executive Chairperson may be entitled to
maintain a chairperson's office at the listed
entity's cxpense and also allowed
reimbursement of expeénses inourred in
performance of his [/ her duties

Shareholders’ Right

A half-yvearly declaration of [nancial
performance including summary of sigmificant
events in last six-months, may be sent to each
household of shareholders

Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The listed entity may move towards a regime of
financial statements with unmedified opinion
Managing Director or the Chief Executive

Officer

The listed entity may appeoint separate persons
to the post of the Chairperson and the Managing

Not Applicable

| cCom plied

:‘jﬁm]i[-ied, there are no
gualification in the
Audit Heport

The Chairman of the
Company 18 Mon-
Executive, Independent
Director.

Director or the Chiel Executive Officer, such
that the Chairperson shall:

a. be a non-executive director; and

b. not be related to the Managing Director or the
Chiel Executive Officer as per the definition of
the term “relative” defined under the Companies
Act, 2013

Reporting of internal auditor

The internal auditor may report directly to the

Complied

Audit Commutiee
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5. Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of
sub-paras (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations

There are no non-compliances ol any requirements of Corporate Governance
Report of sub-paras (2} to (10) of Part C mentioned in Schedule V of the
Listing Regulations.

In accordance with Regulation 26(6) of the Listing Regulations, we herchy
confirm that no employee including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or
Promoter of the Company has entered into any agreement for himself /
herself or on behalfl of any other person, with any shareholder or any other
third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with
dealings in the securities of the Company

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with |ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS] notihed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have also
been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of
the Compamies Act, 2013,

Model Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Team

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all its director's
and members of the Senior Management, which is in consonance with the
requirements of the Listing Regulations, The said code 15 available on the
websgite of the Company and can be accessed through web-link:
hitps: ! fnepaclin/index. html,

All the Board Members and members of the Senior Management have
affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company [or the year ended
March 31, 2025.

Directors’' Responsibility Statement

The draft Directors' Responsibility Statement signed by Mr. Chand Ratan
Modi, Director which is included in the Board's Report for the financial year
2024-25 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on
May 17, 2025,

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

In terms of Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
|Depositories and Participants) Hegulations, 2018, Reconciliation of Share
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Capital Audit is carried out on a quarterly basis by a Practicing Company
Secretary with a view to reconcile the total admitted capital with National
Sccuritics Depository Limited ("NDSL”) and those held in physical form with
the total issued, paid up and listed capital of the Company. The audit report,
inter alia, confirms that the Register of Members is duly updated and that
demat [ remat requests were confirmed within stipulated time etc. The said
report is also submitted to Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has in place Risk Management System which takes care of
risk identification, assessment and mitigation, There are no risks, which in
the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report
trading by insiders for prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the
Company. The code, inter-alia, prohibits purchase / sale of shares of the
Company by Directors and designated person while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and
during the period when the Trading Window is closed.

. Dizelosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Number of Complaints filed during the financial year - NIL

b. Number of Complaints disposed of during the financial year - Not
Applicable

¢. Number of Complaints pending as on end of the financial yvear - Not
Applicable

.Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of loans and advances in
the nature of loans to firms / companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount

Not Applicable, as the Company did not provide any loans and advances in
the nature of loans to firms / companics in which directors are interested.

14. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date
and place of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of
the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries

Not Applicable, as the Company does not have any material subsidiary,




15.Means of Communication

Website: The Company’s website https://nepaclin/investors-info.html.
containg, inter alia, the updated nformation pertaining to quarterly, half-
vearly and annual fAnancial results, annual reports, and shareholding
pattern, important announcements. The said information is available in a
user friendly and downloadable form.,

Financial Results: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of
the Company are submitted to Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India after
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Annual Report containing inter alia Financial Statement, Board's Report,
Auditors' Report, Corporate Governance Report is circulated to the Members
and others entitled thereto and is also available on website of the Company
hitps:/ fnepacl.in/investors-info.himl.

Uploading on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India: The guarterly
resulis, quarterly compliances and all other corporate communications to
the Stock Exchanges are filed electronically on Listing Centre for
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India.

16. General Shareholder's infaormation:

a. | Annual General Meeting L j|
Date, time and venue The 44th Annual General
Meeting ([AGM) of the Company |
will be held on Thursday,
August 28th, 2025 at 5:00 p.m.
IST
Financial Year Financial Year is April 01 to
March 31 of the lollowing year
Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative

I Financial reporting for the | By the first fortnight of August,
quarter ending June 30, 2025 2025

Financial reporting for the half | By the first fortnight of
year ending September 30, 2025 | November, 2025

Financial reporting for the By the first fortnight of
gquarter ending December 31, February, 2026

2025

F‘iniuu:ml reporting for the year | By the end of May, 2026

. | Dates of Book Clnsu.te: Aupgust 22, 2025 1o August 28,
2025

Record date for Dividend N.A.

Dividend Pnymuut Date N.A.




f.

' Listing on Stock Exchanges &
| Payment of Listing Fees

Your Company’'s shares are
listed on: Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India

205(A), 2nd floor, Piramal
Agastya Corporate Park,
Kamani Junction, LBE Road,

Kurla (West}, Mumbai -
00070,

Your Company has paid the
annual listing fee to the
exchange,

Stock Code [/ ISIN

Registrars and Transfer
Agents

Share Transfer System

SYMBOL: NEPACL

| ISIN: INE930E01014

Niche Technologies Pyt Ltd
3A Auckland Place, Tth Floor,
Room No. 7A 8 7B, Kolkata 700

| 017

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of |
the Listing Repulations, as|
amended, transfer of securities
has been effected only inI
dematenalized form with effect |
from January 24, 2022 |
Further, SEBI vide its circular |
dated January 25, 2022, |
mandated that all service
requests for issue of duplicate |
certificate, claim from
unclaimed suspense account,
renewsl f exchange of
sccuritics certificate,
endorsement, subdivision [/
splitting / consolidation of
certificate, transmission and
transposition  which  were
allowed in physical form should
be processed in dematerialised
form only.

The necessary forms for the
above request are available on
the website of the Company at
hitps: / /nepacl.in /index. html.




Address for Correspondence

5, 'Gi:rky Terrace, 2nd Floor,
Kolkata — 700017

Dematerialization of Shares and
Liguidity

Shares held in Dematerialized
form: 3.69,15,860

Share held in Physical form:
35,90,140

Electronic Clearing Service (ECS)

Members are
update their

requested to

bank account
details with their respective
depository participants  ([for
shares held in the electronic
form) or write fo the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents
(for shares held in the physical
form, il any)

| Investor Complaints to be
addressed to

Details of Suspension  of

Securities from trading, if any

. | Commodity price risk or foreign

exchange risk and hedging

Registrars and Transler P.gﬂnli:
or Company Secretary, at the
addresses mentioned earlier

Not Elp;:llilt-db]f'

The Eﬂnmpany does not have
commaodity price risk.

. | List of all credit ratings obtained

by the entity along with any
revigions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all
debt instruments of such entity
or any fixed deposit programme
or any scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in
India or abroad

Not applicable, as the Company
did not issue any debt
instruments or any fixed
deposit programme of any
scheme or proposal involving
mohilization of funds, in India
or abroad,

Disclosure of certain type of
agreements binding listed
entities as per clause 5A of
paragraph A of Part A of Schedule
IIT of the Listing regulations

There are
impacing

no agreement
management  or
control of the Company or
imposing any restricion or
create any liability upon the |
Company. I

J:’-'--.. -_-1 x\ By order of the Board
' of Directors,
AL
Lo i fhﬂir'”"'
Champa Lal Pareck
Managing Director
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DIN: 0O030815

Date: 17.05.2025
Place: Holkata
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DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR ON CODE OF
CONDUCT AS REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE V OF THE
LISTING REGULATIONS

As required under Regulation 343) read with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, T hereby declare that
gll the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Pergonnel of North Eastern
Publishing and Advertising Co Ltd (the ‘Company’] have affirmed, compliance with
provisions of the applicable Code of Conduct of the Company during the financial

yvear ended 31st March, 2025,

For North Eastern Publishing and Advertising Co Ltd

Champa Lal Pareek
Managing Director
DIN: 00030815

Date: 17.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




JOINT CERTIFICATION ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(Purseand to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule [T Part B of the SEBI [LODE] Regulahions,
205)

We, Champa Lal Pareck, Managing Director and Mr. Binod Kumar Bihapd, Chiel’ Financial
Officer certify thaits

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow atatement for the vear ended
March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief;

(i} These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact nor contain statements that might be misleading,

fiil These statements present troe and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge amd belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year, which are fravculent, legal or in violation of the
Company’s code of conduct,

We accept responaibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we
have disclosed (o the auditors and the Audit Commities, deficiencies in the design or
operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that we
have taken to rectify the identified deficiences,

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the
Auditors and Audif Committee;

Significant changes, if any, in the intermal control over financial reporting during
the year,

Significant changes, if any, in the accounting policics made during the year and
that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the finencial statements, amd

[nstances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an emploves having significant role in the
Company's internal contral systemn over financial reporting,

For North Eastern Publishing and Advertising Co Litd

-

o= M i ".:-'. I b v BV DU L VT

Champa Lal Pareck [l'%| Kolkata _: I|I Binod Humar Bihani

Managing Director b B g Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00030815 R, oo --_",-.s/ PAN: AEHPBT263K
1‘\.1\%_ i o " Ii.|-:::_.?

- e, —

Date: 17.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




S. MANDAL & CQO.291, SEVEN TANKS LANE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DLUIM DU IN;,
KOLEATA -T00 030
Phone :  2556-6768
2546-3209
Fax : {(33) 2546-3269
E-Mail : 8 mondal_eaodiiyvahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of NORTH EASTERN PUBLISHING AND ADVERTISING CO LTD.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion and Conclusion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NORTH EASTERN
PFUBLISHING AND ADVERTISING CO LTD.{"the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive
income/{expense), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Material Accounting Policy Information, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the Financial
Statements”).In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
canformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March2025, and its profit and other comprehensive expense,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.
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Serial Key Audit Auditor’s Response
Mo. Matter

1. Revenue As the Company's revenue would be derived primarily from
Recognition | sale of properties comprising of commercial/residential units
and sale of plotted and other lands, we have reviewed the
procedures of revenue recognition with respect to the
satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time and
subsequently over time when the Company has enforceable
right for payment for performance completed to date and
transfer of control of promised products to customer in an
amount that reflects the transaction price i.e. consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
| products.

Information (rther than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, the Board's report including annexure to Board's Report, Corporate
Governance and 5Shareholders information, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our Auditors Report thereon.

Qur opinion on Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our respensibility is to
read the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or other information
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
af this Other Information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.,

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
total comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeqguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.
B e



Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i} of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operaling effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a

reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financialstatementsmaybeinfluenced. Weconsiderquantitativematerialityandgualitativef
actors in{i)planning

thescopeofourauditworkandinevaluatingtheresultsofourwork; and(iijtoevaluatetheeffect
ofanyidentified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

H e
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order'), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As reguired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

{b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the 5Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive

income, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule ¥ of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

{e) The observations on financial transactions do not reveal any matters which have any
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

{f} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
Jist March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{g) With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure-B.

(niwWith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable |losses.

iit. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company, in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and rules made there under.

e
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iv. (i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or Kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{ii} The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the [like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-
statement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For 5. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Mo. 314188E)

(H. C. Dey) R

Partner -
Membership No. 050190 | M‘;r/
UDIN: 250 s0000MOpLASIS% 57

Place: Kolkata

Date: 177 May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - “A™ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of North Eastern Publishing and Advertising Co Ltd. of
even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ["PPE"] and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(b} According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company's management carries out the physical verification
of Property, Plant and Equipment once in a year. [n our opinion, the frequency of physical
verification Is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. As
explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed by the management on such physical
verification.

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

{d] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued its PPE during the year.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year
or are pending against the Company as at 31st March, 2025 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions [Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended [n 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

il, (a) The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
apinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable and no discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{b] According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
socurity of current assets, Accordingly, clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

tii. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any
loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register required under section 18% of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iii} of the order is not applicable,

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of Section 185

(e -
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of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186{1) of the Act; the
other pravisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information, explanation and representatien provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which
are deemed to he deposits. Accardingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

vi, The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating to amounts
deducted /accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year, According to
the Information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of
customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

viii. According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. {a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wiltul defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government ar any government authority or any other lender.

(€} According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans, Accordingly, clause 3{ix){c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company,

(e} The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associate. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.
Accordingly, clanse 3[ix]){e] of the Order is not applicable.

X {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of
public offer during the current linancial year. Accordingly, clause 3{x)[a) of the Drder is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our



examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment
of equity shares during the vear.

¥l (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given Lo us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management.

(b} In our opinton and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section [12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii] of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xili. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone fnancial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with Its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv] of the Order is not applicable to the
Company and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi. (a) The provisions of Section 4.5-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi){a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid CoR from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(£} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company Is not a Core
Investment Company ("CIC ") as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3[xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and has incurred cash

losses in the immediately preceding financial year covered by our audit.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

Accordingly, clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, along with details provided in Note 28 to the Financial statements which describe the
maturity analysis of assets & labilities other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that the Company s not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, howewver, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reperting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

xx. The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3] of the Order is not
applicable.

xx1.The Company is not required to prepare any Consolidated Financial Statement, accordingly
Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For 5. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’'s Registration No. 314188E)

(H. C. Dey)
Partner

Membership No. 050190

UDIN: 25050190 BMDDLAFISH

Place: Kolkata . .
Date: 17 May, 2025 I- J.’-}"; ﬂj"?r sz
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ANMEXURE - *B" TO AUDITORS' REFORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financtal Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act"”)

We bhave audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NORTH FASTERN
PUBLISHING AND ADVERTISING CO LTD. as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directar of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
regponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controds that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
refiable financial information, as required under the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinfon on the Company's intemnal financial contrels over financial
reporting based on our audit., We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
fssued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrels, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtaln reascnable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and I such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal Tinancial
controls over financial reparting, assessing the rick that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinfon on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

o

1

Contd,



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 15 a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

{2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Fimancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of cotlusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to ermor
of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluatien of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intermal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions; or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

Ire owr apinion, the Company kas, inall material respects, an adeqguate internal linancial controls system
over financial reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the Internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India®™,

For S.MANDAL & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registrotion No. 314 188E

(H.C.DEY)
Partner
Membership No.: 050190

UDIN: 25050020BMONDLAT]33
Kolkata
Date: 17% May, 2025
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avbes to the financial stabem ent for the vear ended Yist March 2025
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Compeny {hverview

morih wdtrn Publishieg aod Adverismg Co. Lod. |"the Company™) hoving CIN: LEBDHWE I #1RFLCZT2244 is engaged
prinmrily in the husieess o’ Real Bsmie construction, development and niber related aeivies, The cosspasy & a public limsaed
company ineorporaed sed domeciled in india haing s registensd oftiee @ 5. Gorky Termes, Tnd Floos, Shakespears Sarmni,
Kalkaln, ‘West Bengal-700017, The Company is Listed on Meropalitan Siock Exchanpe of India Linsiled {"MSE").

Hazis of Freparatiom

a. Staetement of complianee

he Btaminlone Fmmeml Staemenis af the Company bave bees prepared m accordsnee wich ihe Iediom Accounring Sanndards
A IMED A s per e Lompanies (indian Accooning Sandards} Bules, 2005 nai ed usder the Scetion 1335 of e Companiis
Ao, 2007 §the Ad” and the meleyvent provisions and pmendments, o spplcohle.

The Stmdalone Frmsesd Siatemmnis o vhe Compansy G the year emled Marcs 31, 2035 were ausharized Bor isae? by the
Board of Clirectors

. Funstinnal snd presentutban carrengy

These sumdalene Fisancial Stoiemens are presented i Indeaiy rpses (PR which b5 alsa the fmctions] wreney of the
Cowmgary' Al Enancial informatiom preenbed m Incisn ropoes has been munded 1o the neanest thinsand, unless otheradse
atmed

. The figuares of e provioes vear have been regoouped ©resiated. wherever ooosidered necessany.

Hasis of accounting

e Twamicinl supaments have Been peepaiel on going comern basis in pecosdancs with aceosniing priiphes gaerally
scocpied i India: Further, the fimancial sisorsenis have been propared on hisiorical cost basis except for certain financial
exwezs il finaneial liabilices and shire bazed pmymems which are mezmmed ai i valies,

Sarnmina ry OF signifieanl aocommting palicies

The lrancinl simooments have been peepaned using the sigeifices) scoimmsing pobicies and measiremen] hivses summuarised
oy Tleses were s thripghout a8 peneels presEeed mihe Nnanenil seiemens

{Cuiwenl viérsus nua-twereil il idn

Imview oof the mum husness abjectives chanped from NEFC petrvities to Heal Extme woe £ 20011 2023 o) sssets ond Hebilities
hivs: bizem clazaified g cument and som earent as per the commpany's pomsall opsrotieg cyele s he Golhoweed sl othir s
actal in Companics A 2003, sccounts have been preparcd accordingdy. Deferred tax nsseis nnd bsbilioes are classificd os
nnn-comrest ascels ol son-currsm linhilities, g (b come msy he

Hrveaoe epcegnilian

The Compasy derives reveis. pransnly Fom Sak of properises comprising of commercial nesidestial unigs amd sale of plotied
and other fnds.

The Compasy recagnizes revesne when if delermanes the sstisfoction of performance ehbigations at o peen m time and
luEu:l.P,:lll]:r v L avkean ghe :uall.lI:, lss enfurceahls l#ll tin paymen for perliemsnges compdsicd us elate, Hevems: 1=
ezl o trnafor of contnd ol promised product: o cusiemon oo ameost thai refiects S mnssction prce L.
pansideration which the Companmy sapects 1o receive ineschangs Tor thses prodinoes.
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Frogerty Plant and Eqeipmant and Indangible Assets

Fropemy, plant aisd eguopineit anid mdingzible fescts ans staied of cost ol acquisition fess accumubited deprecinio |
amoetisation Cest includes nlf expenses incidental to the scquisiion of the Property, plei and cquipenend s ooy stiributablo
cost of bringing the essel 10 s werking condifon Ror ds smtended use,

Impairmem of wsets

At ench repoeting date, the Coenpany sesessss whofhi there is any sxlication thai an nssci miny ke mpaired, based on inberned
o exiemal Factoes. IF any such indicatiem exssiz, the recovemnble nmoune of the asset or the cash generating und is estmsed 17
such recewernhle smonnt of the nset o cish gencrmtisg unit s which the assal belinigs i 1ess than ils carrving amount. the
ARy inE amaunl i nedsced 1 os recovurabde amound. The redoction is tremted as-an impasmeent koss ond e recogmised an the
statement of profit and less. IF, at the seporiisg, dace there in s indicatn chet s previewsly assimsed mmpaimment less po longes
exiats, e recoverabile ainmoiet s risveaed md the g is reflooted at the recoverable smount Impainment kisses previmisly
mecdapniad ane acoondinply reversed o e Siatemest of Profi and Loss

Inrmme fanes
Tax experiee recopniacd in Staemwnl of Prolil ond Loss comprises the sum of deferred tex and ourvent tnn exeepa the ones
recognized in other comprehersive income ar dinecily in equicy

Currond lox B determaned & e s prvable in respect of maailbde meoime fur the seur s i comgaited m acoondase willi
selevimn @ repuliiois Cierenl e Gas relabmg W e recogmised iilsile profil or loss is recogsised cuside pratil o
Mras firither m othir comprehersive incime or inequity

Tretferried L 5 resopirsed inpespect al emparary ddToences beiwees camyme amsom of paseis aad lahitiies T financisl
cepuriieg purpesss and corvespanilizg anwcesnd used S wation purpeses. Defermad s asses on nrcaled L e o
recogniced to the satent thal o is probbde dhat e moderhng s Boas willl be wilised against fulure (exabde meame This &
assessd based anthe Company's frrecst of fulure apemiing resulis, adjusied S significen non-tasable income sl
expenees and spectiie Bimies on the uee of oy umised 13 oes. Unrecegmised defierned toy pesets ore re-nesessed b ench
eepiriizmg dale el ane recopnized fo the eatent thit i€ e hecome probabbe that fore eabde profis will allow e delemed
o wssen i B mcovered

Drelomed Inx assets and linbilities ure measured st the day rabes dhat are expeted 1o apnly i Che e svhen the asset 73 realisad
oo U Behilnty 8 sembed, bossd s s pikes cand o B shat e boen eneciled o ssbstaniovely enoosed an the reporig dee
Dheffred tas relating o flems rocogaised oulsxle simiemern of proficend Inss w recognised aolssde Siatement ol Profil or Loy
(either in ocher compeehemive ineame of inaguly],

Cash and cash eqmivalents
Cleeth il caah eguiealents compmse eash on hanil, Sersand depogies and other shor-term highly Bguid investivsnes thit e
madily convenibbe into known amesets of cash ansd which sre sbjess 10 mn imsgnificant dss of dhanges m valic
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Empayce hepelids

Shari-term cmplayes benefits

Shori-termn emnployes benefits comprise of employes eosts such ma salories, bonus ete, & recognized on the hasis of the s
pthid eor pasvabade fin the perod durisg which services are rendered by the emplinice.

Finamie {asi
Finmce vis repeeseat Enloness expeise recoyrted by apphving he EMcive Inleress Kae (ETRD 10 0w pross carrying
LN

Al sther imcome and expenses
Al pifer moomme and expense are recopnsed mthe perind gy occur

Nivilgnads o srdinary shares

The Company recapnises o lmbality to moke cash distrebutors i egquity shereholders of te Company when the distribuison is
aushieied and the disteibafon oo losger ol the @seetn of the Company, Ax per the Conspandes Act, 2003 fmal dividenl =
auwthurised when 2 is approved by the sharchalders and meermm dividend i mrthorised wien it is approved by the Board of
Drirecices al the Coirgeeny. & comespanding gnouni i recognesesd directly in eguily

Segment Reporting

Tt Cnmgpamy s primury basiness segment i refecied based vo pnscipel buasines acbivites canrisd on by the Comqpony ic
prurchess, Saic, real cifale properlics mlvisony, corsiruetioe and dovelopment of real Satale propeics aod =l other relatsd
achviizes which as per Ind A% 108 an ‘{peraiing Sepmenis” & constilened o be the anly reponiahle busimess segrment. The
Cimgaany s operming in adin which s sensidersd ag 8 @angle gaagapen) epment

Ewrmimgs per shary
Hasic earmings per share 15 caloulaied by dividing the nei profit or boss for (hie penod aiinbimnble i equity shareholders |afier

dedncning annbucabde taxesy by the weiphied averags mimPer of agmily sares autanding Sanng the persosd.

{ash fow Statemaui

Ciash floms are repamed mncder the “Eadivect sethod ms seloat in Ind A5 T on “Starement ol Crsh Flws, wherghy nel profil
afler tux w miljested for the affecis of tmansacions of non-csh nmure, teeeand any defermls or acenals of past or Foiure cash
reccapts or paveenss. The cash flows are preparcd for the opermiimg, invesiong and financing acinvities of ibe Comprny
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NORTH EASTERN PUBLISHING & ADYERTISING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial statement for the vear ended 3158 March, 2025
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MUOETH EASTERN PUBLESFIENG & ADVERTISING COMPANY LIMITED
ares fn the Finamcial sepiements Tor the vea s esaded 319 March, 2025
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MR TH EASTEREN PUBRLESHING & ADVERTISING COMPANY LIMITEDR
Mades te Financisl stasesnest fos the year ended 31 March, 2025
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NORTH EASTERN FURLISHING & ADVERTISING COMPANY LIMITED
Mates 1 the Financial Statedments for the year ebed 35 March, 2025
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